
To Executive Board of Joint Council 10 
From Members of the Independent Review Board 
Re Members of the Executive Board of Local 841 
Date January 12, 1993 

An investigation of IBT Local 841 located in Maiden, 
Massachusetts has been conducted. The members of Local 841, 
which currently has approximately 800 members, include automotive 
transport drivers, garage and parking lot attendants, greasers, 
polishers and parts men in the automotive industry in Boston and 
vicinity. For the past several years, Local 841's assets have 
steadily decreased. The monthly Trustees Reports submitted to 
the IBT for August 1990, 1991 and 1992 reflect that at the end of 
August of these years the Local had a cash balance of $51,946.71, 
$17,108.62 and $4,649.59 respectively. (Exhibit 1)̂  

Daniel Zenga ("Zenga") is the Secretary Treasurer and 
principal officer of Teamsters Local 841. Zenga is also the 
President and principal officer of Local 402 of the Allied 
Novelty and Production Workers, ("Local 402") a non-IBT local. 
Andy Bellemare ("Bellemare") is the Local 841 President, a full-
time position. Bellemare is also the full-time Secretary 
Treasurer of Local 402. In the past, non-IBT Local 402 has 
directly competed with at least one IBT Local for members. By 
acting as IBT officers while simultaneously serving as officers 

These figures are found under "Statement of Assets" on 
the Local 841 Trustee Reports. 



of non-IBT Local 402, Zenga and Bellemare brought reproach upon 
the IBT, engaged in dual-unionism and violated their allegiance 
to the IBT in violation of Article II, Section 2(a)^ and Article 
XIX, Section 7(b)(2) of the IBT Constitution.^ 

In addition, Zenga, as the principal officer of Local 841, 
and Bellemare, as the full-time President of Local 841, have 
caused Local 841 to fail to adopt Bylaws approved by the IBT. By 

^The relevant portion of Article II, Section 2(a) of the 
IBT Constitution states: 

Each person upon becoming a member thereby pledges his 
honor: to faithfully observe the Constitution and laws 
of the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, and the 
Bylaws and laws of his Local Union; to comply with all 
rules and regulations for the government of the 
International Union and his Local Union; to faithfully 
perform all duties assigned to him to the best of his 
ability and skill; to conduct himself or herself at all 
time in such a manner as not to bring reproach upon the 
Union. . . . and at all times to bear true and faithful 
allegiance to the International Brotherhood of 
Teamsters and his Local Union. 

^ Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1),(2) and (3) of the IBT 
Constitution provide in pertinent part: 

The basis for charges against members, officers, 
elected Business Agents, Local Unions, Joint Councils or other 
subordinate bodies for which he or it shall stand trial shall 
consist of, but not be limited to, the following: 

(1) Violation of any specific provision of the 
Constitution, Local Union Bylaws or rules of 
order, or failure to perform any of the duties 
specified thereunder. 

(2) Violation of oath of office or of the oath of 
loyalty to the Local Union and the International 
Union. 

(3) Breaching a fiduciary obligation owed to any labor 
organization by any act of embezzlement or 
conversion of union's funds or property. 



failing to adopt Bylaws which comply with the IBT Constitution 
and refusing to submit Bylaws to the IBT General President for 
approval, Zenga and Bellemare violated Article XXII, Section 
and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT Constitution. 

Furthermore, Zenga, the Secretary Treasurer, has failed to 
keep a bookkeeping system prescribed by the Manual for Local 
Union Secretary-Treasurers. By not adhering to these procedures, 
Zenga violated Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and Article XXIII, 
Section 4̂  of the IBT Constitution. 

The investigation of Local 841 also revealed that Zenga 
embezzled funds from Local 841 by causing Local 841 to pay for 
expenses unrelated to IBT business during Zenga's trips to 

^ Article XXII, Section 1 of the IBT Constitution provides 
in pertinent part: 

Each Local Union shall adopt its own separate 
Bylaws which must comply, and may not conflict, 
with the provisions of the International 
Constitution. . . . 
The principal executive officer shall, in 
general, supervise, conduct and control all of the 
business and affairs of the Local Union, its 
officers and employees. He shall have charge and 
supervision of all the officers and 
employees of the Local Union. . . 

^ Article XXIII, Section 4 of the IBT Constitution states: 
Local Union Secretary-Treasurers shall maintain a 
bookkeeping system as prescribed by the General 
Secretary-Treasurer and approved by the General 
Executive Board. 



Florida, expenses related to Zenga's boat and by taking an 
unauthorized salary increase. By this conduct, Zenga breached 
his fiduciary duties and embezzled approximately $21,774.00 of 
Local 841 funds in violation of Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), 
(2), and (3) of the IBT Constitution. 

Furthermore, no minutes of Local 841 Executive Board 
meetings have been kept since at least 1987.* By failing to keep 
minutes of Local 841 Executive Board meetings, the Local's 
Recording Secretary, William Schomburg ("Schomburg") failed to 
perform his duties thereby violating Article II, Section 2(a) and 
Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT Constitution. Zenga, 
the Local 841 principal officer, was responsible for supervising 
the officers of Local 841. By permitting Schomburg to fail to 
perform his duties, Zenga violated Article XXII, Section 1, 
Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the 
IBT Constitution. 

INVESTIGATION'S FINDINGS 

1. Dual Unionism and Breach of Allegiance to the IBT 
For approximately twenty years, Zenga has been a member and 

the Secretary Treasurer of Teamsters Local 841. Zenga has also 
been an officer of non-IBT Local 402 for approximately twenty 
years. (Exhibit 2 (Sworn Examination of Daniel Zenga, November 5, 
1992 ("Zenga Sworn Exam.")), pp. 6, 59) According to Zenga, 

* The Local 841 documents reviewed by the Chief 
Investigator covered the period from January 1987 through 
September 1992. 



these two positions are full time positions. (Exhibit 2, pp. 7, 
59)^ In 1991 Zenga's salary from Local 841 was $61,490.00; in 
1990 Zenga's non-IBT salary from Local 402 was $62,400.00. 
(Exhibit 3)° 

Bellemare has been a member of Teamsters Local 841 for 
approximately eighteen years and the President of Local 841 for 
approximately eight years. Bellemare is also the Secretary 
Treasurer and business agent of Local 402. (Exhibit 4 (Sworn 
Examination of Andy Bellemare, November 5, 1992 ("Bellemare Sworn 
Exam.")), pp. 4, 5, 25) Bellemare testified that both his IBT 
and non-IBT positions are full time positions. (Exhibit 4, pp. 5, 
25). In 1991 Bellemare's IBT Local 841 salary was $41,800.00? in 
1990 Bellemare's non-IBT Local 402 salary was $62,400.00. 
(Exhibit 3) 

According to Zenga, Local 402 exists so that he can organize 
employees that he is not permitted to organize for IBT Local 841 
because other IBT Locals have jurisdiction over these employees. 
During his sworn examination, Zenga testified that: 

When Local 841 is allowed to carry on Teamster 
business in a certain geographic area and we can 
go after a certain type of member — for instance, 
I can't organize a freight truck driver because 
that license has been given to Local 25, if you will, 

^ Zenga claimed that he divided his time evenly between IBT 
Local 841 and non-IBT Local 402. However, there are no records 
reflecting the amount of time Zenga spent performing IBT work. 
(Exhibit 2, p. 62) 

° The Labor Organization Annual Report (LM-2) for Local 402 
covers the period from September 1, 1989 through August 31, 1990. 



and there's various other things. We have a craft 
charter, but they let us take things that aren't 
spoken for. We can take Hertz Car Rentals, tire 
companies, things like that. There's other things 
that we can't —again, truck driving being one of 
them, cement truck drivers, beer drivers. These 
are already spoke for, charters given on their 
behalf. I also can only go certain places. My 
charter spells out "Boston and vicinity", so under 
my Teamster banner, I couldn't go organized [sic] to 
Rockingham. That would be prohibited. I would not be 
able to do that. 

Q: Is that because another Teamster has that? 
A: Sure. In New Hampshire there's only one Teamster 

Local. He has the whole state of New Hampshire. 
Anything in New Hampshire belongs to them, in 
essence. 

(Exhibit 2, pp. 66-67) 
Indeed, Zenga's non-IBT Local 402 currently represents 

employees at the Rockingham Racetrack in Salem, New Hampshire. 
(Exhibit 2, p. 64; Exhibit 4, p. 27) Zenga admitted that IBT 
Local 633 located in Manchester, New Hampshire would admit the 
employees of the Rockingham Racetrack to IBT membership. (Exhibit 
2, p. 64)^ Thus, non-IBT Local 402 is operating in direct and 
continuous competition with the IBT. 

The serious conflict in Zenga and Bellemare's roles as 
officers of an IBT Local and non-IBT Local 402 was demonstrated 
in 1984 when Local 402 directly competed with IBT Local 633 for 
representation of employees at the Rockingham Racetrack. 

^ Thomas D. Noonan, a business agent and organizer with IBT 
Local 633 in Manchester, New Hampshire, testified at his sworn 
examination that since 1990 employees of the Rockingham Racetrack 
have told him that they would like to become IBT members. Noonan 
further testified that Local 633 would admit these employees to 
membership. (Exhibit 5, Thomas D. Noonan Sworn Examination dated 
November 19, 1992, p. 24) 



During the late 1960's and 1970's Teamsters Local 633 had a 
collective bargaining agreement with The New Hampshire Jockey 
Club, Inc. and the New Hampshire Trotting and Breeding 
Association, Inc. to represent employees at the Rockingham 
Racetrack. According to Thomas D. Noonan ("Noonan"), a business 
agent and organizer of Teamsters Local 633 there was a fire at 
the Racetrack in the late 1970's. The track did not operate for 
a few years. (Exhibit 5 (Sworn examination of Thomas D. Noonan, 
November 19, 1992 ("Noonan Sworn Exam.")), p. 6) During 1984 the 
Racetrack re-opened for business.^" In approximately May 1984, 
Noonan began an organizing drive at the Rockingham Racetrack.^ 
Noonan testified that between May 1984 and October 1984, he 
obtained signed authorization cards from Rockingham employees 

Prior to the fire, Local 633 represented maintenance 
employees, parkers, mutuel clerks and ushers at the Rockingham 
racetrack. (Exhibit 5, p. 13) Noonan testified that in mid 1983 
he attended meetings where prospective buyers were looking to 
purchase the racetrack, in order to see if the actual buyer would 
honor the contracts Local 633 had prior to the fire. Towards the 
end of 1983, Noonan learned that Rockingham Venture, Inc. had 
purchased the racetrack. Efforts made by Noonan to contact 
Rockingham Venture, Inc. failed. (Exhibit 5, pp. 6-9) 

^ Noonan testified that he began his organizing efforts at 
the Rockingham Racetrack after he was contacted by former Local 
633 members who reported that dues were being deducted from their 
salaries by Local 402. (Exhibit 5, pp. 10, 28) These former 
members told Noonan that they had not signed Local 402 membership 
cards or authorized the deduction of dues from their salaries. 
(Exhibit 5, pp. 10-11) After a complaint was filed with the New 
Hampshire Department of Labor, these deducted "dues" were 
returned to the employees. (Exhibit 5, pp. 39-40) 

According to Noonan, Local 402's first written Labor 
Agreement with Rockingham Venture, Inc. was effective April 1985. 
By this agreement Local 402 began to represent the same category 
of workers as Local 633 had represented prior to the fire. 
(Exhibit 5, pp. 14, 17) 



requesting Teamsters representation. (Exhibit 5) Noonan also 
testified that over one hundred and twenty employees out of a 
possible one hundred and eighty employees signed Local 633 
authorization cards. (Exhibit 5, pp. 12-13, 28) 

By letter dated October 16, 1984 addressed to Vance R. 
Kelly, then Commissioner of the New Hampshire Department of Labor 
("N.H. DOL"), Teamsters Local 633 filed an application to have 
the N.H. DOL intervene in a representation dispute between IBT 
Local 633, Local 402 of the Allied Novelty and Production Workers 
Union and Rockingham Venture, Inc.. (Exhibit 6) In a preliminary 
report by the N.H. DOL dated October 22, 1984, the N.H. DOL 
called for the parties involved to submit voluntarily to an 
election to determine which Local would represent the Rockingham 
Racetrack employees. (Exhibit 7) In a brief filed by Local 402 
with respect to Local 633's application, Local 402 stated that 
because the N.H. DOL had no jurisdiction to determine collective 
bargaining representation status in this matter, Local 402 would 
not consent to an election. (Exhibit 8) Furthermore, Zenga 
himself submitted a signed sworn statement dated November 29, 
1984 stating why Local 402 would not consent to voluntary 
arbitration. (Exhibit 9) 

Zenga and Bellemare operate a non-IBT Local that directly 
competes for members with IBT Locals. This divided loyalty seems 
in direct violation of the IBT membership oath which requires 
full allegiance to the IBT. 

8 



During the books and records examination conducted by the 
Chief Investigator, Local 841 produced a copy of their Bylaws. 
(Exhibit 10) Zenga confirmed at his sworn examination that the 
Bylaws produced were the Local 841 Bylaws. (Exhibit 2, pp. se-
al) In significant respects, these Bylaws conflict with the IBT 
Constitution.^ For example, Article XIV, Section 2(a)(1) of the 
IBT Constitution states in part: "[Gjeneral membership meetings 
shall be held monthly. . . Membership meetings may be suspended 
during any three (3) months between June and October . . ." 
Furthermore, the relevant portion of Article XXII, Section 2(a) 
of the IBT Constitution states, "[MJeetings of Local Union 
Executive Boards shall be no less frequent than meetings of the 
Local Union." In contrast, Article V, Section 2 of the Local 841 
Bylaws state: "[T]he Executive Board shall meet at least twice a 
year. . ." (Exhibit 10) 

The Bylaws provided by Local 841 were not endorsed with the 
approval of the IBT. (Exhibit 10) When the Chief Investigator 
requested that the IBT provide a copy of the Local 841 Bylaws, 
the IBT confirmed that Local 841 does not have IBT-approved 
Bylaws. Pursuant to Article XXII, Section 1 of the IBT 
Constitution, each local union is required to adopt Bylaws which 
are approved by the IBT General President. Zenga and Bellemare, 
the only two full-time officers of Local 841, were responsible 

^ Moreover, a comparison of the purported Local 841 Bylaws 
with the non-IBT Local 402 Constitution shows that they are 
almost identical. (Compare Exhibit 10 with Exhibit 11) 



for adopting Bylaws and submitting them to the IBT General 
President for approval. 

Records completed by IBT International Auditor Paul V. 
Murphy ("Murphy") demonstrated that Zenga was informed as early 
as 1982 that he must adopt Bylaws which were approved by the IBT. 
In 1977, when Murphy audited Local 841, he reported that Local 
841 did not have Bylaws on file. (Exhibit 12, IBT Auditor's 
Report dated January 28, 1977; Exhibit 34) In 1982, Murphy spoke 
with Zenga, the Secretary Treasurer of Local 841 and informed him 
that he must adopt Bylaws approved by the IBT General President. 
(Exhibits 13 and 34) In 1982 after completing his audit of Local 
841, Murphy reported that: 

Local Union Sec-Treas was given instruction 
that Local must adopt Local Union By-laws 
which must be approved by the Gen. Pres. A 
copy of the current Model By-laws were left 
by me for Local Union guidance. 

(Exhibit 13, IBT Auditor's Report dated June 4, 1982)^ 
In 1986, Murphy again reported that Local 841 did not have 

any IBT approved Bylaws on file with the International. (Exhibit 
14, IBT Auditor's Report dated May 9, 1986) In 1990, IBT Auditor 
Murphy conducted another audit of Local 841. After this audit, 
Murphy reported: 

In response to my request for a copy of the 
By-Laws I was given the attached. The principal 
officer was on vacation and my question relating 

In response to a request from the Chief Investigator, 
the Local 841 bookkeeper furnished a copy of the IBT Model Bylaws 
as revised in December 1981. 

10 



to approval met with some uncertainty by the 
office secretary. In reviewing them I'm certain 
they were not. I have given instructions that 
they must have the approval of the Gen. Pres. 
in order to be effective. 

(Exhibit 15, IBT Auditor's Report dated September 28, 1990) 
Despite the explicit provisions of the IBT Constitution and the 
instructions given by Murphy to Zenga and the Local's bookkeeper, 
Zenga and Bellemare have not yet caused Local 841 to adopt Bylaws 
which conform to the IBT Constitution. 

3. Improper Recordkeeping 
Pursuant to Article XXIII, Section 4 of the IBT 

Constitution, "Local Union Secretary-Treasurers shall maintain a 
bookkeeping system as prescribed by the General Secretary-
Treasurer and approved by the General Executive Board." The 
bookkeeping system to be followed by Local Secretary Treasurers 
is set forth in the IBT Manual for Local Union Secretary 
Treasurers ("Manual") prepared by the IBT General Secretary 
Treasurer. The Protective Procedures section of the Manual 
provides that a system of internal control is essential to insure 
the proper handling, recording and safeguarding of all Local 
Union property and funds. According to the Manual, Local Union 
Secretary Treasurers should "[i]nsist that all vouchers are fully 
supported in detail before approval." 

The Chief Investigator's analysis of expenses reimbursed to 
Zenga for out of pocket expenses incurred during his out of town 
trips revealed that Zenga frequently submitted undated receipts 

11 



to Local 841 for reimbursement. These receipts did not indicate 
what the receipt was for or the location where the expense was 
incurred. (Exhibit 16) Additionally, no information was provided 
regarding what relation these undated receipts had to any IBT 
business. (Exhibit 16) The "description" portion of the Local 
841 checks issued to Zenga as reimbursement for these receipts 
merely stated "out of town travel". (Exhibit 16)^ 

In addition, based upon a review of Zenga's expenses paid by 
Local 841 and non-IBT Local 402, it appears that Zenga spends a 
significant amount of time each year in Florida. During an 
investigation by the United States Department of Labor ("DOL") 
Zenga claimed that he was involved in organizing efforts in 
Florida on behalf of non-IBT Local 402. (Exhibit 18, report dated 
March 23, 1992) The Local 841 Wage and Expense reports show that 
Zenga was paid every week from January 1987 through September 
1992. (Exhibit 19) Zenga claimed that he was entitled to five 
weeks vacation per year from Local 841; however, the Local does 
not keep any record of vacation time used by Zenga (Exhibit 2, p. 
37). Since no vacation records are kept by the Local, the Chief 
Investigator was unable to determine whether Zenga was taking 
vacation from Local 841 to which he was not entitled. 

4. Embezzlement 

In 1991, Zenga received approximately $565.00 as a 
result of submitting these undated receipts to Local 841. 
(Exhibit 17) 

12 



The evidence suggests Zenga has embezzled monies from his 
IBT and non-IBT Locals. 
A. Florida Expenses 

Zenga owns a home in Florida. (Exhibit 2, p. 38). An 
analysis of Zenga's out of town expenses paid by Local 841 
reflect numerous expenses incurred in Florida for gasoline, auto 
rental, air travel and food. Zenga was not able to provide 
documents to justify certain of these expenses paid by Local 841 
as business expenses related to his IBT work.^ The total amount 
of probable improper expenses incurred by Zenga was approximately 
$227.00 

During December 1988 and January 1989, Zenga incurred seven 
charges in Florida on the Local 841 Exxon credit card. (Exhibit 
20) These charges, which totaled $78.90, are reflected on the 
January 9, 1989 Local 841 Exxon bill. (Exhibit 20)^ In June 
1989 Zenga incurred four charges totalling $57.25 in Florida on 
the Local 841 Exxon credit card. (Exhibit 21) These charges were 

Despite his inability to demonstrate how some of these 
charges were related to any IBT business in Florida, Zenga 
testified at his sworn examination as follows: 

What it looks like is that I go to Florida on 
vacation and use my Teamster charge. That's 
what this looks like to me. I can tell you 
I don't do that. It's easy for me to tell 
you that. I can tell you I'm way too smart 
to do that and I do not do that. 

(Exhibit 2, p. 47) 

^ Local 841 paid this bill by Local 841 check #2626 dated 
January 20, 1989. (Exhibit 20) 

13 



reflected on the Local 841 Exxon bill dated July 8, 1989. 
(Exhibit 21)^ Zenga was also reimbursed by Local 841 for an 
$18.00 transaction dated February 6, 1991 in Florida. (Exhibit 
22)^ The books and records examination conducted by the Chief 
Investigator did not reveal any justification for Local 841's 
payment of these charges incurred by Zenga in Florida.^ In 
addition, despite a request by the Chief Investigator to describe 
the IBT business he was conducting in Florida when these several 
charges were incurred, Zenga was not able to demonstrate that 
these charges were related to any IBT business. (Exhibit 2, 
pp.42-38; Exhibit 23)^ 

In 1990, Zenga submitted to Local 841 along with Florida 
expenses a guest receipt dated September 20 in the amount of 

Local 841 paid this bill by Local 841 check #2900 dated 
July 27, 1989. (Exhibit 21) 

^ See Local 841 check #3720 dated February 14, 1991. 
(Exhibit 22) 

^ After being questioned about the $78.90 and $57.25 
expenses during his sworn examination and in subsequent 
correspondence, Zenga's attorney claimed that Zenga repaid these 
improper charges. (Exhibit 23, November 16, 1992 letter from 
Michael A. Feinberg) Despite the Chief Investigator's request 
for proof that Zenga paid the Local for these expenses, no 
documents reflecting repayment have been received. (Exhibit 23, 
November 17, 1992 letter from Celia A. Zahner and December 4, 
1992 letter from Michael A. Feinberg) 

^ Zenga claimed that the February 6, 1991 $18.00 charge 
was incurred during IBT carhaulers negotiations in Florida. 
(Exhibit 23, December 4, 1992 letter from Michael A. Feinberg) 
However, records received from the National Automobile 
Transporters Arbitration Committee revealed that a meeting was 
held in Florida from January 29, 1991 through February 1, 1991. 
(Exhibit 24) 
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$73.25 for reimbursement. (Exhibit 25)^ On October 18, 1990 
Local 841 issued check #3539 to Zenga to pay for this receipt in 
addition to the other submitted receipts; the description portion 
of this check contained the statement "out of town meetings". 
(Exhibit 25) When asked to explain this guest receipt, Zenga, in 
a letter by his attorney, replied that this expense was actually 
incurred on September 20, 1990 "in the greater Boston area" and 
was "inadvertently noted as being part of the 'out of town 
meetings' expenses on the check." (Exhibit 23, December 4, 1992 
letter from Michael A. Feinberg) 
B. Embezzlement from Non-IBT Local 402 

In addition to the misuse of funds from Teamsters Local 841, 
records obtained from the Boston office of the U.S. Department of 
Labor-Office of Management Standards indicate that Zenga may have 
also misused funds from non-IBT Local 402. Leslie Zenga, the 
wife of Daniel Zenga, is the salaried full-time office manager 
for Local 402. (Exhibit 18, November 19, 1991 Report)^ During a 
November 13, 1991 interview with DOL representatives, Zenga 
claimed that his wife accompanied him to Florida to assist with 
Local 402 business; Zenga stated, however, that Local 402 did not 
pay Leslie Zenga's airfare when she traveled to Florida. (Exhibit 
18) Despite Zenga's representations to the DOL, during 1987 and 

These receipts did not conform to the requirements of 
the Secretary Treasurers Manual. 

^ The DOL investigation of Zenga revealed that Local 402's 
office is Zenga's home in Danvers, Massachusetts. (Exhibit 18, 
February 6, 1989 Report) 
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1988 Local 402 purchased six airline tickets to Florida in Leslie 
Zenga's name. (Exhibit 26) The total amount Local 402 paid for 
these airline tickets was approximately $1490.50.^ 
C. Use of Local 841 Funds for Personal Expenses 

In August 1989, Zenga participated in an Eastern Conference 
Car Haulers Meeting held in Falmouth, Massachusetts. (Exhibit 2, 
pp. 68-77) Teamsters Local 841 paid for Zenga's attendance at 
this meeting. (Exhibit 2, pp. 68-77) During this conference, 
Zenga took some of the meeting participants for a ride on his 
private 41 foot cabin cruiser at Local 841 expense. (Exhibit 2, 
p. 69) This extra expenditure cost Local 841 approximately 
$907.00 above and beyond the usual expenses incurred by Zenga 
during this meeting. (Exhibit 27) These extra expenses included 
fuel for Zenga's boat, dockage fees in Falmouth Harbor, and food 
and liquor to entertain members of the committee. (Exhibit 27) 
These extra expenses were incurred and paid to Zenga by Local 841 
for the use of his private boat without approval of the Local 841 
Executive Board or the knowledge of the Local's general 
membership.^ 

^ In United States v. IBT. 905 F. 2d 610 (2d Cir. 1990), 
the Second Circuit affirmed the Independent Administrator's 
decision that embezzlement by an IBT officer from a non-IBT union 
brought reproach upon the IBT. 

^ Neither the General Membership nor the purported 
Executive Board minutes produced during the Chief Investigator's 
books and records examination in September 1992 reflected any 
approval. (Exhibit 28) However, after Zenga was questioned about 
these payments during his November 5, 1992 sworn examination, he 
produced through his attorney an undated document which he 
alleged reflected the minutes of the Executive Board meeting held 

(continued...) 
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Zenga provided two different explanations for these 
expenditures for his boat. During an interview with DOL 
representatives on November 12, 1991, Zenga stated that in August 
1989, he received permission from Ernest Tusino ("Tusino"), the 
chairman of the Teamsters National Carhaulers Division, to use 
his 41 foot cabin cruiser, Motivation, at the Car Haulers 
Conference held in Falmouth, Massachusetts. (Exhibit 30) After 
interviewing Tusino on April 13, 1992, DOL representatives 
reported that Tusino stated 

Sometime before this conference Daniel Zenga 
called him and asked if he wanted to go on a 
ride on his yacht with some of the guys (on the 
committee) while at the conference. Tusino 
went on the ride around the harbor with a group 
of carhaulers representatives. Tusino thought 
that Zenga's offer was a private thing and was 
not a union activity. Tusino was unaware that 
Local Union 841 funds were used to pay for the 
costs of bringing the boat to Falmouth, mooring 
in Falmouth and gas charges. Tusino stated he 
did not have authority to permit Zenga to pay 
any bills relating to the use of his yacht with 
union funds. 

(Exhibit 30, April 13, 1992 DOL Interview Report) 
In contrast to the explanation provided to the DOL, during his 
sworn examination before the Chief Investigator, when Zenga was 
asked whether he spoke with Tusino about the fact that Local 841 
was going to pay for the expenses related to his boat, Zenga 
testified that: 

I don't know. I don't know whether I did or 
didn't. I don't even know why that would come 

^(...continued) 
by telephone conference during which the Local 841 Executive 
Board approved these expenditures. (Exhibit 29) 
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up. As long as they didn't have to pay for it, 
I'm sure they weren't concerned about who was 
paying for it. 

(Exhibit 2, p. 71-72) 
As noted above, at his sworn examination, Zenga claimed that by 
telephone conference the Local 841 Executive Board approved the 
payment of these expenses related to his boat. (Exhibit 2, p. 70) 

D. Unauthorized Salary Increase 

The Local 841 employee Wage and Expense Records indicated 
that Zenga received a weekly salary increase of $107.50 starting 
the week of January 12, 1989. (Exhibit 19) As noted above, there 
were no Bylaws validly in place authorizing salary increases. 
Pursuant to Section 14-2 of the Proposed Model Local Union 
Bylaws, the Local union Executive Board shall "[Pjrovide the 
salaries for the officers and Business Agents..." (Exhibit 31)^ 

A review of available documents does not indicate approval 
or even any discussion among the members of the Executive Board 
with respect to this salary increase. From January 12, 1989 
through September 11, 1992 the employee Wage and Expense Record 
of Local 841 indicated that Zenga received a total of $20,640.00 
as a result of this unauthorized salary increase during this 
period of time. (Exhibit 32) There was no approval of this 
salary increase reflected in the minutes of any Executive Board 

^ Zenga did not even comply with the non-IBT approved 
Bylaws which he claimed were adopted by the Local. The pertinent 
portion of Section 6 of these Bylaws states, "The Secretary 
Treasurer's salary shall be set by the Executive Board". (Exhibit 
10) 
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meeting and there was no mention of Zenga's salary increase in 
the minutes of any general membership meeting. (Exhibit 28) 

5. Breach of Recording Secretary's Duties 
During the Chief Investigator's examination of the books and 

records, Local 841 was asked to produce all general membership 
and Executive Board meeting minutes from January 1987 through 
September 1992. The minutes provided by Local 841 from 1987 
through 1990 do not contain any mention of any Executive Board 
meetings and no reference was made to any Executive Board 
meetings. (Exhibit 28)^ Beginning in December 1990, the general 
membership meeting minutes started reflecting the following 
sentence, "Executive Board Meeting called to order 9 AM." 
(Exhibit 28) No other details of Executive Board meetings were 
included. 

William Schomburg ("Schomburg") has been the Recording 
Secretary for Local 841 for approximately six years. The duties 
of the Recording Secretary include keeping accurate minutes of 
Executive Board and general membership meetings. The Proposed 
Model Local Union Bylaws as revised in December, 1981, Section 11 
state in part, "It shall be the function of the Recording 
Secretary to attend General Membership Meetings of the Local 
Union and the Local Union Executive Board and to keep minutes of 

Although there are no minutes, Zenga claimed that 
Executive Board meetings were held immediately prior to general 
membership meetings. (Exhibit 2, p. 55) 
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the proceedings." (Exhibit 31)^ During his sworn examination, 
Schomburg testified that as Recording Secretary he kept minutes 
of the Executive Board meetings. (Exhibit 33 (Sworn Examination 
of William Schomburg, November 5, 1992 ("Schomburg Sworn 
Exam.")), p. 10)2° 

During his sworn examination, Schomburg was shown a copy of 
the minutes from September 12, 1992 which contained the 
statement: "Executive Board Meeting called to order 9AM by Pres. 
A. Bellemare." (Exhibit 33, p. 12)^ Since December 1990, this 
notation, which appeared in the minutes of each of the general 
membership meetings, was the only mention of any Local 841 
Executive Board meetings. (Exhibit 28) When asked whether this 
notation reflected the minutes of the Executive Board meeting on 
September 12, 1992, Schomburg responded: "There was no Executive 
Board Meeting. We were there. There was nothing to discuss." 
Schomburg went on to state that no Executive Board meeting was 
actually held on that date. (Exhibit 33, pp. 10-13). Since at 
least 1987 Schomburg has not kept any minutes of Local 841 

These Model Bylaws were provided to Local 841 by IBT 
Auditor Murphy during the 1982 audit of Local 841. (Exhibit 13) 

^ Even the non-IBT approved Bylaws produced by Local 841 
state: "The Recording Secretary shall have the following duties: 
keep a correct record of the proceedings of the Local Union 
Meetings..." Article VI, Section 5. (Exhibit 11) 

There is no legitimate justification for Schomburg's 
failure to keep minutes of Executive Board meetings, particularly 
since he kept minutes of general membership meetings. 
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Executive Board meetings. By this conduct, Schomburg has failed 
to perform his duties as Recording Secretary of IBT Local 841. 

Zenga, as principal officer of IBT Local 841, pursuant to 
Article XXII, Section 1 of the IBT Constitution, was required to 
"supervise, conduct and control all of the business and affairs 
of the Local Union, its officers and employees." By permitting 
Schomburg to fail to perform the duties of Recording Secretary, 
Zenga failed to perform his supervisory function over the other 
officers of the Local. When questioned during his sworn 
examination about Executive Board meeting minutes, Zenga 
testified as follows: 

If we have an Executive Board Meeting, but 
there's nothing major that transpired, I 
suppose there's no reason for minutes, I'm 
not in charge with minutes anyway. 

Q: Do you ever look at the minutes that the Recording 
Secretary has written? 

A: No, never. 
(Exhibit 2, p. 55) 

VIOLATIONS 

By acting as IBT officers while simultaneously serving as 
officers of non-IBT Local 402 and directly competing with at 
least one IBT Local for members, Zenga and Bellemare brought 
reproach upon the IBT, engaged in dual-unionism and violated 
their allegiance to the IBT in violation of Article II, Section 
2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(2) of the IBT Constitution. 

By failing to adopt Bylaws which comply with the IBT 
Constitution and refusing to submit Bylaws to the IBT General 
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President for approval, Zenga and Bellemare violated Article 
XXII, Section 1 and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT 
Constitution. 

By failing to keep a bookkeeping system as required by the 
IBT Secretary Treasurers Manual, Zenga violated Article XIX, 
Section 7(b)(1) and Article XXIII, Section 4 of the IBT 
Constitution. 

By causing Local 841 to pay for expenses unrelated to IBT 
business during his trips to Florida, expenses related to his 
boat and by taking an unauthorized salary increase, Zenga 
breached his fiduciary duties and embezzled approximately 
$21,774.00 of Local 841 funds in violation of Article XIX, 
Section 7(b)(1), (2), and (3) of the IBT Constitution. 

By failing to keep minutes of Local 841 Executive Board 
meetings, Schomburg, the Local's Recording Secretary, failed to 
perform his duties and violated Article II, Section 2(a) and 
Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT Constitution. By 
allowing Schomburg to fail to perform his duties, Zenga, the 
Local 841 principal officer, violated Article XXII, Section 1, 
Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the 
IBT Constitution. 
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
444 North Capitol St., NW, Suite 528 

Washington, DC 20001 
(202) 434-8080 

Facsimile (202) 434-8084 
Corruption Hotline (800) CALL IRB 

Chief Investigator: Board Members: 
Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 
17 Battery Place, Suite 331 
New York, NY 10004 

Crandall, Pyles & Haviland 
1021 Quarrier Street 

Charleston, WV 25301 
Frederick B. Lacey, Esq. 

Grant Crandall, Esq. 

Administrator: 
John J. Cronin, Jr. LeBoeuf, Lamb, Leiby & MacRae 

One Gateway Center, Suite 603 VIA EXPRESS MAIL Newark, NJ 07102-5311 
William H. Webster, Esq. 

July 21, 1993 Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy 
1825 Eye Street, NW, Suite 1100 

Robert DeRusha Washington, DC 20006 
Secretary Treasurer 
Joint Council 10 
650 Beacon Street 
Room 501 
Boston, MA 02215 

RE: Joint Council 10 Decision regarding Local 841 Officers 

Dear Mr. DeRusha: 

We have received your June 4, 1993 letter enclosing the 
"Supplemental Decision of the Executive Board of Joint Council 10 
in the Matter of Daniel Zenga, Andy Bellemare and William 
Schomburg" ("supplemental decision"). By this supplemental 
decision, the Joint Council 10 Executive Board removed Daniel Zenga 
("Zenga") and Andy Bellemare ("Bellemare") from their positions 
with Local 841 and indefinitely suspended their IBT membership. 
Zenga and Bellemare were both permanently barred from being 
employed by Local 841 or other IBT Entity. By this supplemental 
decision, Local 841, Zenga and Bellemare were directed not to cause 
contributions to be made on Zenga's or Bellemare's behalf to the 
Local's Health and Welfare and Pension Funds. 

Furthermore, within ninety days of receipt of the decision, 
the Joint Council 10 Executive Board directed Zenga and Bellemare 
to cause properly supervised representation elections to be held 
between non-IBT Local 402 and IBT local 63 3 at the Seabrook and 
Rockingham Racetracks. The supplemental decision also provided 
that after Zenga and Bellemare disaffiliated themselves from non-
IBT Local 402, they may reapply to Joint Council 10 of reinstate-
ment of their IBT membership. However, as a condition of 
reinstatement of their IBT membership, both Zenga and Bellemare 
must agree never to seek union office or to serve as an employee or 
consultant to Local 841 or any other IBT Entity. 

Pursuant to the Consent Order of the United States District Court, S.D.N.Y. 
United States -v- International Brotherhood of Teamsters 88 CIV 4486 (DNE) 



Robert DeRusha 
Joint Council 10 
July 13, 1993 
Page 2. 

the supplemental decision, William Schomburg was suspended 
from his position as Trustee of Local 841 for a period of six 
months after which he may apply to Joint Council 10 for 
reinstatement to the position of Trustee. 

In light of the supplemental decision, the Independent Review 
Board has no further questions regarding the actions taken in this 
matter. 

Very truly yours, 

Members of the Independent 

By: 

cc: Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 



SUPPLEMENTAL DECISION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF JOINT COUNCIL 10 IX THE MATTER OT HAWTyi, 7.TMGR. AMnY **T,1-.*MM!T WILLIAM SCHOMBUR6 
On April 1393, the Executive Board of Teamsters joint 

Council 10, Acting through & three-member panel issued its decision 
in the instant matter. That decision included certain penalties as 
against Daniel Zenga, Andy Bellemare and William Schomburg- This 
decision was submitted to the Independent Review Board for its 
consideration, By letter dated Kay 27, 1993, the Independent Review 
Board notified the Executive Board of Joint Council 10 that the 
panel's decision was "inadequate" because the Joint Council's 
sanctions were, in the judgment of the independent Review Board, not 
"sufficiently specific^' in certain respects. The independent Review 
Board directed the Executive Board to take "additional actions" to 
correct the "deficiencies" noted by the Independent Review Board. 

In accordance with the instructions of the Independent 
Review Board, the Executive Board of Joint Council 10, acting by and 
through the undersigned panel members, hereby imposes the following 
penalties as a substitute for the penalties imposed in its April 5, 
1993 decision. 

PFMM.TV OP TUT! MA.7QRTTV OP THE PANEL MEMBERS 

Daniel Zenga: Based on the findings set out in the April 5, 
1993 decision, the panel removes Zenga from his position as 
Secretary/Treasurer of Local 841 and suspends indefinitely his 
membership in the IBT. The panel further orders that Zenga, within 
SO days of his receipt of this decision, begin the process for 
conducting representation elections between Local 402 and IBT Local 
63 3 at Seabrook and Rockingham Racetraoks. After Local 403 has 



participated in properly supervised representation elections between 
Local 402 and IBT Local 63 3 at seabrook and Rockingham Racetracks and 
after zenga has disaffiliated himself from Local 402, Zenga may apply 
to the Joint council for the reinstatement of his IBT membership. 

The panel further orders that Zenga may not hereafter be 
employed as an employee of IBT Local 841 or any other IBT Entity and 
that neither Looal 841 nor Zenga shall cause to have contributions 
made to the Looal's Health and Welfare and Pension Funds on behalf of 
Zenga. 

The panel finally orders that Zenga, as a further condition 
to seeking reinstatement of his IBT membership, must agree never to 
seek union office or to serve as an employee or consultant to IBT 
Local 841 or any other IBT Entity. 

Andrew Bellemare: Based on the findings set out in the 
April 5, 1993 decision, the panel removes Bellemare from his position 
a3 President of Local 841 and suspends indefinitely his membership in 
the IBT* The panel further orders that Bellemare, within 90 days of 
his receipt of this decision, begin the process for conducting 
representation elections between Local 402 and IBT Local 633 at 
Seabrook and Rockingham Racetracks. After Local 402 has participated 
in properly supervised representation elections between Local 402 and 
IBT Local 633 at Seabrook and Rockingham Racetracks and after 
Bellemare has disaffiliated himself from Local 402, Bellemare may 
apply to the Joint Council for the reinstatement of hie IBT 
membership. 



The panel further orders that Bellemare may not hereafter be 
employed as an employee of IBT Local 841 or any other IBT Entity and 
that neither Local 841 nor Bellemare shall cause to have 
contributions made to the Local's Health and Welfare and Pension 
Funds on behalf of Bellemare. 

The panel finally orders that Bellemare, as a further 
condition to seeking reinstatement of his IBT membership, must agree 
never to seek union office or to serve as an employee or consultant 
to IBT Local 841 or any other IBT Entity. 

William schomburg: Based on the findings set out in the 
April 5, 1993 decision, the panel suspends Schomburg from his 
position as Trustee of Local 841 for a period of six months. At the 
conclusion of six months, Schomburg may apply to the Joint Council 
for reinstatement to the position of Trustee, schomburg's 
reinstatement will be conditioned upon a showing by Schomburg that he 
is fully aware of the responsibilities of a Local union Trustee. 

_ ^ 
Robert L. Piccone Robert G. DeRusha 
Vice President Saaretary/Treaeurer 

Date: June 4, 1993 
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Independent Review Board 
444 No. Capitol Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20001 

Re: Independent Review Board 
Report of Officers of Local 841 

Gentlemen: 

Enclosed please find the "Decision of the Executive Board of Joint 
Council 10 in the Matter of Daniel Zenga, Andy Bellemare and William 
Schomburg". 

Very truly yours, 

Rqbert G. DeRusha 
Secretary/Treasurer 

Enclosure 

cc Ron Carey, General President 
Charles M. Carberry, Investigations Officer 
Daniel Zenga 
Andy Bellemare 
William Schomburg 
Michael Feinberg, Esq. 
Gary Witlen, Esq. 
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DECISION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF JOINT COUNCIL 10 IN THE 
MATTER OF DANIEL ZENGA. ANDY BELLEMARE AND WILLIAM SCHOMBURG 

In a document dated January 12, 1993, the members of the 

Independent Review Board ("IRB") forwarded to the Executive Board of 

Joint Council 10 a report that contained certain "findings" and 

"charges" as against Daniel Zenga ("Zenga"), the Secretary/Treasurer 

and principal officer of Local 841; Andy Bellemare ("Bellemare"), 

the President of Local 841; and William Schomburg ("Schomburg"), a 

Trustee of Local 841 and the former Recording Secretary of that 

Local. The IRB's referral was made under Section G(e) of the Consent 

Order in United States of America v. International Brotherhood of 

Teamsters et al, 88 CIV 4486 (DNE), which provides as follows: 

"Any findings, charges, or recommendations of the 
Independent Review Board regarding discipline or trusteeship 
matters shall be submitted in writing to an appropriate IBT 
entity (including designating a matter as an original 
jurisdiction case for General Executive Board review), with 
a copy sent to the General President and General Executive 
Board. The IBT entity to which a matter is referred shall 
thereupon promptly take whatever action is appropriate under 
the circumstances, as provided by the IBT Constitution and 
applicable law. Within 90 days of the referral, that IBT 
entity must make written findings setting forth the specific 
action taken and the reasons for that action." 

As set forth in the IRB's referral document, the specific 

charges to be considered by the Executive Board were as follows: 

(1) "By acting as IBT officers while simultaneously 
serving as officers of non-IBT Local 402 and directly 
competing with at least one IBT Local for members, Zenga and 
Bellemare brought reproach upon the IBT, engaged in 
dual-unionism and violated their allegiance to the IBT in 
violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, 
Section 7(b)(2) of the IBT Constitution." 

(2) "By failing to adopt Bylaws which comply with the 
IBT Constitution and refusing to submit Bylaws to the IBT 
General President for approval, Zenga and Bellemare violated 
Article XXII, Section 1 and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of 
the IBT Constitution." 



(3) "By failing to keep a bookkeeping system as 
required by the IBT Secretary Treasurers Manual, Zenga 
violated Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and Article XXIII, 
Section 4 of the IBT Constitution." 

(4) "By causing Local 841 to pay for expenses 
unrelated to IBT business during his trips to Florida, 
expenses related to his boat and by taking an unauthorized 
salary increase, Zenga breached his fiduciary duties and 
embezzled approximately $21,774.00 of Local 841 funds in 
violation of Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2), and (3) of 
the IBT Constitution." 

(5) "By failing to keep minutes of Local 841 Executive 
Board meetings, Schomburg, the Local's Recording Secretary, 
failed to perform his duties and violated Article II, 
Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT 
constitution. By allowing Schomburg to fail to perform his 
duties, Zenga, the Local 841 principal officer, violated 
Article XXII, Section 1, Article II, Section 2(a) and 
Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT Constitution." 

In response to the IRB's referral, the Executive Board of 

Joint Council 10 first put in place an Overseer of Local 841, 

effective February 1, 1993. The Overseer selected by the Executive 

Board is John Perry, who is the principal officer of Local 82 and a 

Trustee of Joint Council 10. Among his responsibilities, the 

Overseer is responsible for approving all expenditures of funds by 

Local 841 while the Executive Board considers the IRB's charges. 

The Executive Board of the Joint Council next selected a 

panel of three of its members - Robert L. Piccone, Vice President; 

Robert G. DeRusha, Secretary/Treasurer; and John F. Murphy, 

Recording Secretary - to conduct a hearing and issue a decision on 

the IRB's charges. That hearing was conducted on February 10, 1993. 

The hearing was stenographically recorded and, subsequently, 

transcribed. The transcription accurately reports the individuals 
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present during the hearing as well as accurately describes the 

exhibits introduced into evidence. [Since this is the first referral 

made by the IRB under the Consent Order, the Executive Board had no 

guide regarding the procedural format to be used in acting on the 

IRB's referral.] 

FINDINGS 

(1) "By acting as IBT officers while simultaneously 
serving as officers of non-IBT Local 402 and directly 
competing with at least one IBT Local for members, Zenga and 
Bellemare brought reproach upon the IBT, engaged in 
dual-unionism and violated their allegiance to the IBT in 
violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, 
Section 7(b)(2) of the IBT Constitution." 

This charge relates to the role of Zenga and Bellemare as 

president and secretary/treasurer, respectively, of Local 402, Toys, 

Dolls, Sporting Goods and Novelty Workers Union, AFL-CIO ("Local 

402"). According to his testimony, Zenga obtained a charter for 

Local 402 in approximately 1973. Also according to his own 

testimony, Zenga obtained the Local 402 charter to compete with and 

invade the jurisdiction of IBT Local 633, which has jurisdiction in 

New Hampshire: 

MR. MURPHY: Why did you obtain a charter for Local 402 
of the Novelty Workers Union? 

THE WITNESS: I answered that question earlier. It was 
a vehicle to organize the Seabrook Race Track. 

MR. MURPHY: Because you couldn't organize them as 
Teamsters? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

MR. MURPHY: Why couldn't you organize them as 
Teamsters? 

THE WITNESS: Two reasons. Number one, we don't have 

-3-



jurisdiction up there; and number two, the dues structure 
in the Teamsters is way too high for that kind of a worker. 
They would not join the Teamsters. 

MR. MURPHY: Do you recall what the dues structure was 
back in the '70s? 

THE WITNESS: Four dollars, it was very low. But, no, 
I mean you're asking me to go back over 20 years. So the 
simple answer is, no, I cannot. 

MR. MURPHY: Did you ever give any consideration at all 
back when you obtained your charter from the Novelty Workers 
Union of turning that organizing lead over to the Teamsters? 

THE WITNESS: No, never. (Transcript at pp. 163-165) 

The panel finds that by seeking a charter from the Novelty 

Workers to avoid the jurisdictional restrictions of the IBT, Zenga 

failed to bear true and faithful allegiance to the IBT. In obtaining 

the Local 402 charter and, thereafter, organizing the employees at 

the Seabrook Race Track, Zenga competed with IBT Local 633 for 

employees of a type historically represented by Local 633. In this 

regard, the statement by Zenga that he also obtained the Local 402 

charter because the dues structure of the Teamsters was, at that 

time, too high for track workers is contradicted by the fact that IBT 

Local 633 represented various classifications of employees at the 

Rockingham race track in Salem, New Hampshire from 1967 until the 

track burned down in the latter part of the 1970's. Accordingly, the 

panel finds that, in fact, the dues structure within the Teamsters 

was not an impediment to the organizing of the Seabrook employees by 

IBT Local 633 and that Zenga sought the Local 402 charter solely to 

avoid the IBT's jurisdictional restrictions. 
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The next incident where Zenga, now in conjunction with 

Bellemare, competed directly with IBT Local 633 for members occurred 

at Rockingham Racetrack in 1984. In 1984, Local 633 attempted to 

organize various classifications of employees at Rockingham 

Racetrack. Local 633 obtained signed authorization cards from over 

120 employees out of a unit described by Local 633 as containing 180 

employees. The record contains copies of those signed authorization 

cards. Local 633's efforts to organize were challenged by Local 402 

and the track based on claims that the New Hampshire Department of 

Labor had no jurisdiction to conduct an election and that Local 402 

and Rockingham Racetrack had a collective bargaining agreement 

covering the employees Local 633 was seeking to represent. 

At no time has Zenga or Bellemare presented any documentary 

evidence, other than a printed collective bargaining agreement, to 

support their testimony that Local 402 during 1984 was authorized to 

represent the employees sought by Local 633. In fact, the record 

contains persuasive documentary evidence to the contrary. In this 

regard, the record contains a sworn statement from the owner of 

Rockingham that, in November 1984, the track had refunded dues to 

approximately 200 employees that had been improperly deducted and 

given to Local 402. The record also contains copies of Local 402's 

membership cards which clearly authorize the deduction of dues. 

These two documents are not consistent with the testimony of Zenga 

and Bellemare that they represented a majority of the employees at 

Rockingham when they entered into a collective bargaining agreement 
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with the track. 

In any case, the fact remains that, regardless of whether 

Local 402 had the necessary authorization cards at the time it 

entered into the collective bargaining agreement with Rockingham, the 

Rockingham situation represented an infringement of IBT Local 633's 

jurisdiction by Zenga and Bellemare through the vehicle of Local 402. 

Zenga and Bellemare raise three "defenses" to this charge. 

First, they argue that the charge is barred by the Article XIX, 

Section 7(a) which provides: "Any charge based upon alleged 

misconduct which occurred more than five (5) years before the 

discovery of the conduct giving rise to the charge shall be rejected 

by the Secretary-Treasurer, except charges based on the non-payment 

of dues, assessments and other financial obligations." Zenga and 

Bellemare argue that since the formal conflict with Local 633 

occurred in 1984, the charge of dual unionism is time barred. The 

panel disagrees. Local 402 continues to represent employees in New 

Hampshire under a charter that Zenga admits was obtained by him to 

avoid the jurisdictional requirements of the IBT. While the formal 

conflict before the New Hampshire Department of Labor occurred in 

1984, the infringement on the jurisdiction of Local 633 by Zenga and 

Bellemare remains just as real and offensive today as it was in 

1984. Had Zenga and Bellemare relinquished their claim to employees 

in New Hampshire under the auspices of Local 402 more than five years 

ago, their statute of limitations claim would be persuasive. 

However, since Zenga and Bellemare continue to represent employees in 
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New Hampshire today, they continue to compete with Local 633. 

The second argument of Zenga and Bellemare is that a 

telegram in October 1984 from then-IBT General President Presser to 

the principal officer of Local 633 disclaimed interest in the 

Rockingham unit of employees, which means, according to Zenga and 

Bellemare, that they cannot be found to have improperly competed with 

Local 633. The panel rejects this argument for two reasons. First, 

there is no evidence that General President Presser was aware, when 

he sent the telegram, that the officers of Local 402 were also 

officers of IBT Local 841. Second, Zenga and Bellemare 

mischaracterize the telegram as a disclaimer of interest. In this 

regard, the telegram states: 

"For your information, the following message has been 
received in this office from Julius Isaacson, President, 
International Union of Allied Novelty And Production 
Workers: Quote — Please be informed that one of your 
Locals, Local 633, 265 Maple Street Manchester New Hampshire 
is actively raiding one of the International Union of 
Allied, Novelty and Production Workers, AFL-CIO unions, 
Local 402 at Rockingham Race Track, Salem New Hampshire. 

As you are aware the International Brotherhood of 
Teamsters, Chauffeurs, Warehousemans and Helpers of America 
have a no raid mutual assistance pact with the International 
Union of Allied Novelty and Production Workers, AFL-CIO. 
Will you please inform your Local Number 633 to honor our 
agreement — Unquote 

If the above facts are correct and as we have a no-raid 
agreement with the NPW, you are instructed to cease and 
desist your organizing activities and to withdraw your 
interest in the employees of Rockingham Race Track. Please 
Advise me by Titan that you have complied with these 
instructions" (emphasis supplied). 

Local 633 responded to General President Presser's telegram by 

indicating that Local 633 and not Local 402 had had collective 
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bargaining agreements with Rockingham prior to the fire which closed 

the track for several years. General President Presser took no 

further action to restrict Local 633's efforts to organize at 

Rockingham. Accordingly, the panel finds that neither the language 

of the telegram itself nor the subsequent actions of General 

President Presser can be characterized as evidence that the IBT 

disclaimed interest in the employees at Rockingham. 

The third argument of Zenga and Bellemare is that their 

involvement with Local 402 was "common knowledge" and, therefore, the 

panel should infer from that fact that they did not violate the IBT 

Constitution, since no one ever challenged them within the IBT 

organization. However, the panel now has before it a charge of 

dual-unionism, and while the lack of prior charges has been noted by 

the panel, the members of the panel do not place great weight on the 

absence of prior action but have recognized the absence of prior 

action as a mitigating circumstance and have framed the penalty 

accordingly. 

The panel is responsible for considering the charges now 

before the Joint Council. Based on the evidence and considering the 

arguments of Zenga and Bellemare, the panel finds that both Zenga and 

Bellemare have violated and continue to violate Article II, Section 

2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(2) of the IBT Constitution. 
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(2) "By failing to adopt Bylaws which comply with the 
IBT Constitution and refusing to submit Bylaws to the IBT 
General President for approval, Zenga and Bellemare violated 
Article XXII, Section 1 and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of 
the IBT Constitution." 

There is no dispute on the record that Local 841 has not had 

Bylaws that complied with the IBT Constitution for at least 10 years. 

There also is no dispute that Local 841 has failed to submit its 

Bylaws to the General President for approval for at least the same 10 

year period. The record contains a declaration of IBT auditor Paul 

V. Murphy and related exhibits. The declaration and exhibits reveal 

that Auditor Murphy audited Local 841 in 1982, 1986 and 1990; that 

during the 1982 and 1986 audits Murphy advised Zenga that the Local 

841 Bylaws had to be properly adopted and approved by the General 

President; and that in 1990 Murphy advised the Local's office 

personnel that bylaws had to be adopted and approved. 

During the hearing, Zenga did not challenge Auditor Murphy's 

evidence: 

"MR. ZENGA: I would have to say this. I've known Paul 
Murphy a long time. Paul Murphy is probably one of the 
finest gentleman I've ever met. And I am not going to sit 
here, and I don't want to be in a position to be bumping 
heads with Paul Murphy. I mean I've got nothing bad to say 
about him. I'll tell you this, if he wrote that it's 
because that's what he believes happened. I can tell you 
that I never recall having a conversation with him about 
bylaws, that I just don't recall." Transcript at p. 265. 

Accordingly, the panel finds that Zenga and Bellemare 

violated Article XXII, Section 1 and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of 

the IBT Constitution by failing to adopt Bylaws which comply with the 

IBT Constitution and refusing to submit Bylaws to the IBT General 

President for his approval. 
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(3) "By failing to keep a bookkeeping system as 
required by the IBT Secretary Treasurers Manual, Zenga 
violated Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and Article XXIII, 
Section 4 of the IBT Constitution." 

During the hearing, Zenga stipulated that the bookkeeping 

method employed by Local 841 under his supervision did not comply 

with the IBT Secretary Treasurers Manual in that the method employed 

by Zenga did not require "that all [expense] vouchers [were] fully 

supported in detail before approval" (Transcript at pp. 97-98). 

Therefore, the panel finds that Zenga violated Article XIX, Section 

7(b)(1) and Article XXIII, Section 4 of the IBT Constitution by 

failing to keep a bookkeeping system as required by the IBT. 

(4) "By causing Local 841 to pay for expenses 
unrelated to IBT business during his trips to Florida, 
expenses related to his boat and by taking an unauthorized 
salary increase, Zenga breached his fiduciary duties and 
embezzled approximately $21,774.00 of Local 841 funds in 
violation of Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2), and (3) of 
the IBT Constitution." 

The panel has carefully reviewed this charge as drafted by 

the IRB. While the body of the IRB's report contains references to 

improper expenses billed by Zenga to Local 402, the actual charges do 

not refer to this issue. In addition, the charge characterizes the 

expenditures in Florida and for the boat as "unrelated to IBT 

business" (as opposed to "unauthorized"), while characterizing the 

salary increase as "unauthorized." The panel assumes and believes 

that the IRB intentionally framed this charge in the manner indicated 

above and will not substitute its judgment for that of the IRB in 

framing the issue. 
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The evidence is undisputed that Local 841 paid for certain 

charges incurred by Zenga on his Local 841 credit card in Florida, in 

a location near his Florida residence. There is no apparent dispute 

that these charges, which totaled $136.15, could not be shown by 

Zenga to have been related to any business on behalf of Local 841. 

There also appears to be no dispute that a reimbursement for an $18 

cash expense, that also was incurred by Zenga in Florida, could not 

be shown by Zenga to have been incurred in relation to his duties as 

Secretary/Treasurer of Local 841. The IRB has also challenged a 

reimbursement for a $73.25 meal expense that, according to Zenga, was 

improperly described as an "out of town" expenses when, in fact, the 

$73.25 was a properly reimbursable expense incurred by Zenga in the 

greater Boston area. Zenga has reimbursed Local 841 for the $136.15, 

$18 and $73.25, while not conceding that the expenses were not 

reimbursable. 

The panel finds that the Florida expenses were not properly 

paid by Local 841. The panel, however, does not find that Zenga 

"embezzled" those funds as the panel understands the meaning of that 

term, in that the panel finds that the billing to Local 841 (or, 

alternatively, the failure to immediately reimburse the Local) was 

inadvertent. In making this finding, the panel notes that it is 

undisputed that Zenga regularly was in Florida; yet, the evidence 

presented showed no pattern of improper Florida charges to Local 

841. The panel finds that, as regards these charges, the breach of 

fiduciary duty lies with the failure of Zenga to impose the requisite 
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bookkeeping system that would have required detailed vouchers and 

that would have most likely avoided the failure on the part of Zenga 

to promptly reimburse Local 841. 

As regards the $73.25 expense for which Zenga was 

reimbursed, the panel does not find that Zenga embezzled those 

funds. However, here again the absence of the proper bookkeeping 

system results in a lack of verification of the actual purpose of the 

expenditure. The panel finds that Zenga had a fiduciary obligation 

to the members of Local 841 to render a specific accounting as to 

this expense and that had Zenga not already reimbursed Local 841 for 

this expense, the panel would have ordered him to do so as part of 

its remedy. 

The second class of expenditures referred to in this charge 

is the expenses associated with the use by Zenga of his private boat 

to entertain participants at the Eastern Conference Car Haulers 

Meeting held in Falmouth, Massachusetts. These expenditures, which 

totalled $907, included fuel, dockage fees and food and liquor for 

consumption on the boat. The panel is troubled by the "authoriza-

tion" evidence offered by Zenga and Bellemare, given that the only 

instance in which the alleged actions of the Executive Board of Local 

841 are documented in writing during the period January 1987 to 

September 1992 is the signed confirmation of the alleged telephone 

poll results. However, as regards the boat, Zenga is not charged 

with incurring an unauthorized expense but, rather, is charged with 

causing Local 841 to pay for expenses unrelated to the business of 
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Local 841. In addition, Article VI, Section 6 of Local 841's Bylaws 

granted the Secretary/Treasurer the authority to "[i]ncur expenses 

that he deems necessary for the good and welfare of the local union." 

Accordingly, the panel finds that the question of whether Zenga 

received Executive Board approval is not relevant to this charge. 

In regards to the issue of whether the boat expense related 

to the business of Local 841, there is no evidence that the boat was 

not used to entertain the members in attendance at the meeting. As a 

representative from the host State, the panel finds that Zenga could 

incur reasonable expenses entertaining the members and that the use 

of his boat as the method for entertaining those members (as opposed 

to, for example, hosting a reception or a dinner) was not unrelated 

to the business of Local 841. 

The final element of this charge is the alleged unauthorized 

salary increase. The panel finds that this portion of the charge 

relates directly to the charge that the various officers failed to 

keep adequate minutes of Executive Board meetings. Given the total 

absence of Executive Board minutes, the panel must weigh the 

credibility of all the witnesses who testified regarding this issue. 

In this regard, each of the Executive Board members who testified 

during the hearing stated that the matter of the salary increase was 

raised, briefly discussed and ultimately approved by the Executive 

Board at the Board's December 1988 meeting. The panel finds that 

insufficient evidence exists to conclude that Zenga's salary increase 

was not authorized. 
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(5) "By failing to keep minutes of Local 841 Executive 
Board meetings, Schomburg, the Local's Recording Secretary, 
failed to perform his duties and violated Article II, 
Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT 
Constitution. By allowing Schomburg to fail to perform his 
duties, Zenga, the Local 841 principal officer, violated 
Article XXII, Section 1, Article II, Section 2(a) and 
Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT Constitution." 

There is no dispute that the Recording Secretary of Local 

841, Schomburg, failed to keep minutes of the Executive Board 

meetings from at least January 1987 through September 1992. Zenga, 

as principal officer of Local 841, was responsible for insuring that 

those minutes were kept. Therefore, the panel finds that Schomburg 

violated Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of 

the IBT Constitution and that Zenga violated Article XXII, Section 1, 

Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) of the IBT 

Constitution. 

PENALTY OF THE MAJORITY OF THE PANEL MEMBERS 

Daniel Zenga: Based on the findings set out above, the 

panel removes Zenga from his position as Secretary/Treasurer of Local 

841 and suspends indefinitely his membership in the IBT. The panel 

further orders that Zenga, within 90 days of his receipt of this 

decision, begin the process for conducting representation elections 

between Local 402 and IBT Local 633 at Seabrook and Rockingham 

Racetracks. After Local 402 has participated in properly supervised 

representation elections between Local 402 and IBT Local 633 at 

Seabrook and Rockingham Racetracks and after Zenga has disaffiliated 

himself from Local 402, Zenga may apply to the Joint Council for the 

reinstatement of his IBT membership. 
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Andrew Bellemare: Based on the findings set out above, the 

panel removes Bellemare from his position as President of Local 841 

and suspends indefinitely his membership in the IBT. The panel 

further orders that Bellemare, within 90 days of his receipt of this 

decision, begin the process for conducting representation elections 

between Local 4 02 and IBT Local 63 3 at Seabrook and Rockingham 

Racetracks. After Local 402 has participated in properly supervised 

representation elections between Local 402 and IBT Local 633 at 

Seabrook and Rockingham Racetracks and after Bellemare has 

disaffiliated himself from Local 402, Bellemare may apply to the 

Joint Council for the reinstatement of his IBT membership. 

William Schomburg: Based on the findings set out above, the 

panel suspends Schomburg from his position as Trustee of Local 841 

for a period of six months. At the conclusion of six months, 

Schomburg may apply to the Joint Council for reinstatement to the 

position of Trustee. Schomburg's reinstatement will be conditioned 

upon a showing by Schomburg that he is fully aware of the 

responsibilities of a Local Union Trustee. 

The panel recommends that the Overseer, who is familiar with 

the operation of Local 841 and who is the principal officer of IBT 

Local 82, serve as the Trustee of Local 841 until the final 

disposition of this case. 

Rdbert L. Piccone Ro) 
V^ce President Seqretary/Treasurer 

Date: April 5, 1993 
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I concur with the findings of my fellow panel members that Daniel 
Zenga and Andrew Bellemare are guilty of Dual Unionism. 

Dual Unionism is one of the most serious infractions that a trade 
unionist can commit; indeed, it is tantamount to treason. The 
fact that Zenga and Bellemare have engaged in Dual Unionism 
without prior challenge does not in any way detract from the 
damage their misconduct caused this Union. 

A labor organization has the right to expect that elected 
officers or agents do not sabotage or subvert its policies in the 
name of a supposed loyalty to union members nor engage in 
activities diametrically opposed to the very existence of the 
union. Meaderv. IUMSWA, 786 F. Supp.95 (D. ME., 1992). 

The importance of these principals has been recognized by both 
Congress and the National Labor Relations Board. Section 
101(a)(2), 29 U.S.C. Section 411(a)(2) of the LMRDA permits the 
expulsion of any member who attempts to threaten the union as an 
institution. Congress included the following restriction on the 
freedom otherwise guaranteed to a union member. 

Provided. That nothing herein shall be construed to impair 
the right of a labor organization to adopt and enforce 
reasonable rules as to the responsibility of every member 
toward the organization as an institution and this 
refraining from conduct that would interfere with its 
performance of its legal or contractual obligations. 
LMRDA section 101(a)(2), 29 U.S.C. Section 411(a)(2). 

In addition, the National Labor Relations Board has held that 
expulsions are permissible where the actions of a union member 
interfere with the union's institutional integrity. Section 
8(b)(1)(A) National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. section 
158(b)(1)(A).. 

The IBT has a right and duty to demand loyalty from its 
international and local officers. Dual Unionism strikes at the 
union as an institution and the only appropriate penalty is 
expulsion. 



Therefore I recommend the following: 

Daniel Zenga shall be removed from his office of Secretary-
Treasurer of Local 841 and expelled from membership in the 
IBT immediately. 

Andrew Bellemare shall be removed from his office of 
President of Local 841 and expelled from membership in the 
IBT immediately. 

The penalty imposed on William Schomburg is appropriate. 

Recording Secretary 


